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           1

           2                    P R O C E E D I N G S

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Get you to call your next

           4   witness.

           5             MR. GUYTON:  Call Mr. Burroughs.

           6                     MICHAEL L. BURROUGHS

           7   was called as a witness on behalf of Gulf Power Company

           8   and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

           9                         EXAMINATION

          10   BY MR. GUYTON:

          11        Q    Mr. Burroughs, have you previously been sworn?

          12        A    I have.

          13        Q    Would you please state your name for the

          14   record.

          15        A    Michael L. Burroughs.

          16        Q    And what is your position?

          17        A    I am Vice President of Power Generation for

          18   Gulf Power Company.

          19        Q    Mr. Burroughs, did Gulf file with the

          20   Commission on July 8th, 2011, your direct testimony,

          21   consisting of 29 typewritten pages?

          22        A    That's correct.

          23        Q    And do you have any corrections to your direct

          24   testimony?

          25        A    I do.
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           1        Q    Would you share those with the Commission

           2   slowly so that we can all keep up with the changes?

           3   Thank you.

           4        A    Sure.  The first change, page 8, line 5,

           5   change improvement to incentive.

           6             Also we had several changes regarding removing

           7   intransient fuel related to Scherer, and those changes

           8   are on page 15, line 1.  Change 86,804,000 to

           9   86,454,000.

          10             On line -- on page 15, line 5, change

          11   86,804,000 to 86,454,000.

          12             Page 15, line 2, change 10,718,000 to

          13   10,368,000.

          14             Page 20, line 2, change 10,718,000 to

          15   10,368,000.

          16             On page 21, line 2, change 2.21 MCF to 2.27.

          17             Related to my exhibit, on Schedule 7, under

          18   the column Budget 2015, the entry for baseline other

          19   should be changed to 55,973, from that to 49,933.  The

          20   entry for total baseline should be changed from 99,670

          21   to 93,630.  The total for, total actual budget should be

          22   changed from 120,607 to 114,567.

          23             Also the average shown on the bottom of

          24   Schedule 7 should be changed from 113,223 to 112,015.

          25        Q    Mr. Burroughs, if I were to ask you today the
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           1   same questions that appear in your direct testimony,

           2   would your answers, as amended by the changes you've

           3   given this morning, be the same?

           4        A    Correct, sir.

           5             MR. GUYTON:  We ask that Mr. Burroughs' direct

           6   testimony be inserted into the record as though read.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll insert Mr. Burroughs'

           8   direct testimony into the record as though read.

           9   BY MR. GUYTON:

          10        Q    Mr. Burroughs, with the correction to Schedule

          11   7 of your Exhibit MLB-1 and the revised Schedule 8 that

          12   was previously filed with the Commission, is the

          13   information in your exhibit true and correct, to the

          14   best of your knowledge and belief?

          15        A    That's correct.

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. GUYTON:

           2        Q    Mr. Burroughs, would you please summarize your

           3   testimony for the Commission.

           4        A    Sure.

           5             Good morning, Commissioners.  My name is

           6   Michael Burroughs, and I'm the Vice President of Power

           7   Generation for Gulf Power.  I have oversight

           8   responsibility for all aspects of power production at

           9   Gulf Power, including safety, plant performance,

          10   operations, maintenance, production capital additions,

          11   fuel, resource planning, and renewable energy.

          12             First let me say safety is the first priority

          13   of every employee at Gulf Power.  In fact, safety is a

          14   core value, and it's our desire that every day we work

          15   every job safely.

          16             The overall objective of our safety program is

          17   zero accidents.  Since 1990 we've reduced recordable

          18   accidents by 89%, and our recordable incident rate has

          19   been more than 50% better than the industry between 2003

          20   and 2010.

          21             Gulf measures plant performance in terms of

          22   reliability, that's EFOR (phonetic), equivalent forced

          23   outage rate; efficiency, heat rate; both of which can

          24   have a profound effect on our customers.

          25             Gulf's plant performance metrics have been
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           1   excellent since our last rate case, and compares very

           2   favorably to our industry peers.  In fact, Gulf's

           3   reliability has consistently been in the top quartile

           4   during this time frame.

           5             While it is recognized that our past

           6   performance has been superior, appropriate capital and

           7   O&M budgets are necessary to ensure we continue to

           8   maintain reliable and efficient operation of our

           9   generation fleet.

          10             Both the capital and O&M budgets are developed

          11   using a rigorous multilevel process that ensures the

          12   most critical issues are addressed.  Again, our past

          13   performance is evidence of this fact.  The budgeted

          14   dollars for both capital and O&M are representative of

          15   the expenditures that Gulf expects in 2012 and beyond.

          16             Gulf's philosophy regarding to fuel inventory

          17   has not changed since our last rate case.  Our request

          18   for coal and gas inventory is almost identical from our

          19   last rate case with regard to volume.  However, prices

          20   have increased significantly.

          21             Gulf's request for distillate oil has

          22   increased since our last rate case.  That is due to a

          23   contractual obligation for Gulf to maintain fuel oil

          24   inventories relative to our three purchased power

          25   agreements.
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           1             As part of our planning process, Gulf

           2   evaluates a variety of generation resources to meet

           3   future needs.  Regulations regarding greenhouse gas

           4   emissions, hazardous air pollutants, hazmat, coal

           5   combustion by-products, ozone, particulate matter, are

           6   all in the various stages of the regulatory process.

           7             Given the uncertainty of the effect on our

           8   generating fleet and future generation decisions, Gulf

           9   made a strategic decision to purchase land in north

          10   Escambia County that would meet the requirements of a

          11   nuclear generation, of a generation facility.  This

          12   decision was made to preserve a nuclear option for our

          13   customers.  By making this strategic decision, Gulf now

          14   has property for all types of generating capacity,

          15   including nuclear, gas, clean coal, and renewables.

          16             An option is most valuable when uncertainty is

          17   at its highest.  I submit to you that our industry is

          18   confronted with great uncertainty, and we must be

          19   strategically positioned to make the best decision for

          20   our customers.

          21             Gulf recognizes the importance of a diverse

          22   portfolio of generating options, and we proactively

          23   evaluate all renewable generation projects.  We also

          24   recognize the importance of minimizing upward pressure

          25   on rates charged to our customers.  As a result, Gulf
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           1   continues to evaluate all projects against our avoided

           2   costs.

           3             In conclusion, Gulf customers expect and

           4   deserve a reliable and efficient generating fleet.

           5   We've provided reliable and efficient generation for our

           6   customers since our last rate case in 2002.  Our

           7   performance indicators are a testament to that fact.

           8   Every short and long-term decision we make has the

           9   customer as our focal point.

          10             However, our costs related to fuel, materials,

          11   and services have increased significantly.  In order to

          12   continue to maintain our outstanding performance and

          13   provide excellent reliability for our customers, we must

          14   have a rate increase.  Approval of this rate request

          15   will ensure that Gulf can meet the needs of its

          16   customers in the future.

          17             That concludes my summary.

          18             MR. GUYTON:  We tender Mr. Burroughs.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think this is a good --

          20   we're coming up on a two-hour mark for the court

          21   reporter, so I think it's a good time for us to take

          22   about a five-minute break.

          23             (Recess taken.)

          24             Mr. McGlothlin, you have control.

          25                         EXAMINATION
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           1   BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

           2        Q    Mr. Burroughs, I'm Joe McGlothlin with the

           3   Office of Public Counsel.  My questions relate to page

           4   26 of your testimony, if you have that available to you.

           5        A    I didn't hear the last part.

           6        Q    Page 26, if you have that available to you.

           7        A    Okay.

           8        Q    In the middle of that page you referred to the

           9   additional land that is being held as potential future

          10   generating sites, did you not?

          11        A    You got a particular line you're referring to?

          12        Q    Yes.  Lines 9 through 15.

          13        A    That would be correct.

          14        Q    And one of those sites is the site we commonly

          15   refer to as Caryville; correct?

          16        A    That's correct.

          17        Q    And you've indicated that there's 2,200 acres

          18   of property there?

          19        A    That's correct.

          20        Q    And also that this particular property has

          21   been through the process under the Power Plant Siting

          22   Act; correct?

          23        A    That's correct.

          24        Q    And as part of that process, is it correct

          25   that the applicant can ask the siting board to approve
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           1   not only an individual proposed plant, but also to

           2   review and establish the maximum capacity for which the

           3   site is certified?

           4        A    I can't speak to the accuracy of that.

           5        Q    Is it true that the certification order issued

           6   for the Caryville site certifies that site for

           7   3000 megawatts of capacity?

           8        A    I'm not aware of that.

           9             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Well, in that case I want to

          10   distribute a document, Mr. Chairman.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Please.

          12             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We may have to take a quick

          13   time-out.  The individual who has the documents is not

          14   in the room apparently.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, we'll move on to

          16   Ms. Kaufman and come back to you.

          17             MS. KAUFMAN:  Okay.

          18                         EXAMINATION

          19   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          20        Q    Good morning, Mr. Burroughs.

          21        A    Good morning.

          22        Q    I'm Vicki Gordon Kaufman.  I'm here on behalf

          23   of the Florida Industrial Power Users Group, some of the

          24   very largest users in your territory.

          25             You are the Vice President for Power
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           1   Generation; is that correct?

           2        A    That's correct.

           3        Q    And you've described your duties a little bit

           4   in your, in your remarks, but would I be correct in

           5   assuming that you're intricately involved in planning

           6   what units Gulf will add to its system as we move

           7   forward?

           8        A    You're asking me to assume what you mean by

           9   intricately.  But would I be involved?  That would be,

          10   that answer would be yes, I would be involved.

          11        Q    And certainly, I am assuming that meetings are

          12   held and analyses are performed regarding what the next

          13   generation addition should be; correct?

          14        A    That is correct.

          15        Q    Okay.  Do you know what the next planned

          16   generation units are for Gulf in, say, the next ten

          17   years?

          18        A    We don't have any particular units planned for

          19   development in the next ten years at Gulf Power.

          20        Q    Okay.  Take a look at Schedule 2, if you

          21   wouldn't mind, in your exhibits.

          22        A    Okay.

          23        Q    And what you've depicted there are the current

          24   units on the Gulf system, correct, as well as their

          25   retirement dates, whether owned totally by Gulf or
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           1   jointly owned.

           2        A    Yes.  It depicts the units owned by Gulf,

           3   owned jointly, yes.

           4        Q    Okay.  And all of those units, as I read this

           5   chart, are going to be in service past the 2012 test

           6   year; correct?

           7        A    That would be correct.

           8        Q    Okay.  Can you tell us how many megawatts Gulf

           9   needs in the test year to serve its customer base?

          10        A    How many megawatts we need in 2012?

          11        Q    Uh-huh.  Yes.

          12        A    I can't --

          13        Q    Approximately.

          14        A    I can't give you an approximate number.  I

          15   would tell you the units, the megawatts we have at this

          16   moment is sufficient to serve our customers in 2012.

          17        Q    And you don't know what that number is

          18   ballpark?

          19        A    I can tell you what number we, as a, we have

          20   at our disposal, but the exact number that's needed to

          21   serve our customers, no.  It varies, depending on the

          22   weather, loading, et cetera, et cetera.

          23        Q    Sure.  So can you give me a ballpark?  I

          24   understand it varies from hour to hour.

          25        A    I cannot give you a ballpark, but -- no, I
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           1   can't give you a ballpark number.

           2        Q    Is there another witness that could tell me

           3   that?

           4        A    We could get that number, but you feel -- I

           5   would ask you to refer to Ray Grove.

           6        Q    To who?  I'm sorry.

           7        A    Witness Ray Grove.

           8        Q    Okay.  I will do that.  Thank you.

           9             I don't want to take the wind out of

          10   Mr. McGlothlin's sails, but I did have a few questions

          11   about the Caryville site as well.

          12             And my first question is, do you know how long

          13   the Caryville site has been in rate base?

          14        A    I can't tell you how long it's been in rate

          15   base.

          16        Q    Okay.  Certainly would you agree since your

          17   last rate case ten years ago?

          18        A    I would say it has been in rate base since

          19   2002.

          20        Q    Okay.  And would you agree that all that time

          21   Gulf Power has been earning a return on that site?

          22        A    Again, if you're going to get into earning

          23   returns and those kinds of things, I refer you to

          24   Witness McMillan.

          25        Q    Okay.  As we sit here today, there is no power
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           1   plant on that site, is there?

           2        A    That is correct.

           3        Q    And I understand that, as we sit here today,

           4   Gulf doesn't have any plans to put a power plant on that

           5   site; correct?

           6        A    We don't have any plans in the present or in

           7   the near future to put a facility on the Caryville site.

           8   It is an option for us, and we will use it depending on

           9   what loading is, what the economic growth is, and

          10   whatever environmental regulations that come down in the

          11   near future that will force us into one direction or the

          12   other.  So it serves as an option.  It is not planned at

          13   this purpose for any particular type of facility.

          14        Q    And it's, I think you testified earlier it's

          15   certainly not an option that you're planning at this

          16   point to exercise in the next ten years.

          17        A    I don't plan, nor do I not plan.  The issue is

          18   we don't have a situation at this moment that requires

          19   us to use that particular land site.  It's an option for

          20   us and it will be available for us to use it in whatever

          21   capacity is needed in the near future or in the further

          22   out distant future.

          23        Q    But I think you did testify that Gulf doesn't

          24   have any plans in the next ten years to add plant.

          25        A    We don't have plans.
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           1             MR. GUYTON:  Objection.  Asked and answered.

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I agree.

           3             Move on, Ms. Kaufman.

           4   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

           5        Q    Let's talk for a minute about the proposed

           6   nuclear site that you mentioned in your summary.  And,

           7   as I understand it, you're asking the Commission to

           8   include $28 million in rate base, which is the cost of

           9   these 4,000 acres.  Is that right?

          10        A    The approximate number is correct.

          11        Q    Okay.  What is -- do you have an understanding

          12   of generally the amount of megawatts that are necessary

          13   to construct a nuclear power plant?

          14        A    I don't understand your question.

          15        Q    Okay.  Well, generally when you build a power

          16   plant, would you agree that there's a threshold number

          17   of megawatts to be generated that you need to look at in

          18   order for the plant to be cost-effective?

          19        A    That's one thing I could agree with you on.

          20        Q    Okay.  Do you know what amount of megawatts

          21   you typically see when you, when a nuclear plant is

          22   built?

          23        A    For the sake of discussion, I will give you

          24   the number 11 to 1200.

          25        Q    Okay.  So would you agree with me that
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           1   certainly Gulf's system doesn't have the need for 11 to

           2   1200 megawatts of nuclear power?

           3        A    At this moment we do not have the need for 11

           4   or 1200 megawatts of power.

           5        Q    Have you discussed with anyone, whether it be

           6   your sister companies or others, any sort of sharing of

           7   the cost of this potential nuclear site?

           8        A    We have not entered in any discussions with an

           9   affiliate utility or our sister utilities about sharing

          10   that site related to any kind of generating facility.

          11   We do not have plans specifically to use that site to

          12   build a nuclear plant at this time.  It is an option for

          13   us to use as needed in the future.

          14        Q    Thank you.  And I guess I can assume from that

          15   last comment that certainly you haven't filed a

          16   determination of need for that site?

          17        A    I'm not aware of that.  If you want more

          18   details about that, I refer you to Witness Rhonda

          19   Alexander.

          20        Q    Okay.  Have you had any -- has anyone had any

          21   discussions with the NRC in regard to building a nuclear

          22   plant on that site?

          23        A    I'm not aware.  If you want more details on

          24   that, I refer you to Witness Rhonda Alexander.

          25        Q    Would you be aware if those discussions had
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           1   occurred?

           2        A    If they had happened since I've been back at

           3   Gulf, then I would be aware.

           4        Q    Okay.  So as -- sorry.

           5        A    You may not be aware, but my return to Gulf

           6   was in August of 2010.

           7        Q    Okay.  Welcome back.

           8        A    So I'm speaking, I'm speaking to my time

           9   frame.

          10        Q    Okay.  So in your time frame you are not aware

          11   of any discussions?

          12        A    I am not.  So, again, if you want any details

          13   outside of that time frame, again, I refer you to

          14   Witness Rhonda Alexander.

          15        Q    Have you followed in any way the nuclear

          16   projects of Florida Power & Light and Progress Energy in

          17   the state?

          18        A    I do not follow those projects closely.  I do

          19   from time to time read blurbs in technical magazines and

          20   I glance through them.  But for detail I don't.  I'm

          21   busy enough, I don't have time to follow them.

          22        Q    Do you have a general understanding that the

          23   two proposed nuclear projects, one by Florida Power &

          24   Light at Turkey Point, and one by Progress, Levy site,

          25   have encountered delays?
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           1        A    I have heard that.

           2        Q    Okay.  And you would agree with me, would you

           3   not, that licensing a nuclear plant is a very complex

           4   and difficult process?

           5        A    Not having been involved in one before, I

           6   would be speculating.  But if I speculated, I would say

           7   yes, it does.  But, again, I wouldn't compare Southern

           8   Company, Gulf Power to other utilities.  We consider

           9   ourselves a very superior performing company, and we

          10   don't generally compare ourselves to others.

          11             MS. KAUFMAN:  That's all I have, Mr. Chairman.

          12   Thank you.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

          14             Mr. McGlothlin.

          15             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Guyton, I wonder if this

          16   is something we could accomplish by stipulation.  My

          17   understanding of the review of the certification order

          18   and conditions of certification was that the

          19   certification order approved the Caryville site for an

          20   ultimate capacity of 3000 megawatts.  Is there any

          21   dispute about that?

          22             MR. GUYTON:  I understand that that's correct.

          23             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  With that stipulation on the

          24   record, I have no further questions.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No further questions?
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           1             Major Thompson.

           2             MAJOR THOMPSON:  No questions.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Wright.

           4             MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  If I

           5   may just ask before I start, the Public Counsel

           6   distributed an exhibit.  Do I understand that's not

           7   going to be proffered?

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I believe so.

           9             MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you.

          10                         EXAMINATION

          11   BY MR. WRIGHT:

          12        Q    Good morning, Mr. Burroughs.

          13        A    Good morning, sir.

          14        Q    We met, I think, for the first time in

          15   Pensacola.  I'm Schef Wright, and I represent the Retail

          16   Federation.

          17        A    I remember.

          18        Q    Good.  Me too.

          19             I have a few questions for you.

          20             First, at page 23, lines 7 and 8 of your

          21   direct testimony, you make the statement, "Gulf's next

          22   planned addition for capacity as reflected in our most

          23   recent Ten-Year Site Plan is in 2022."

          24             Are you familiar with that statement?

          25        A    That's correct.
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           1        Q    Okay.  Now isn't it true that you do not have

           2   a specific planned capacity addition in 2022 or any

           3   other year reflected in your Ten-Year Site Plan?

           4        A    I hate to parse words with you, but, I mean,

           5   that's what you do, so that's what I do.  When you say a

           6   planned addition, what do you mean by that?  Or do we

           7   have a facility designed on the board for 2022?  The

           8   answer to that is no.

           9             But we do have a need development in 2022, and

          10   we will have a power purchase agreement for 885

          11   megawatts that will expire in May of 2023.  As such, we

          12   will have to do something during that time frame.

          13        Q    I understand that.  Like, the follow-up

          14   question I would ask you is do you know what plant you

          15   would build in 2022 or 2023?

          16        A    Of course not, not with environmental

          17   regulations that are being proposed.  We cannot

          18   determine at this time what that facility needs to be.

          19             And I will reiterate again, just at the end of

          20   this week, the environmental regulations that are

          21   supposed to come out on December 16th, that we're in

          22   this moment preparing for how do we respond to them.

          23   And if we have to shut down a majority of our coal-fired

          24   units, it's going to affect our decision that we make at

          25   that time frame.
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           1             So, again, for me to be able to project out,

           2   we can't do that.  But we know we will have to make a

           3   decision come 2022, '23, and we can't wait 'til then to

           4   do it.  We have to be prepared in the next two, three,

           5   four years to make a decision what we're going to do.

           6        Q    I understand.  That's what planning is all

           7   about.  Do you agree?

           8        A    We have to plan.

           9             MR. WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. McGlothlin has

          10   kindly agreed to distribute an excerpt from the

          11   company's Ten-Year Site Plan that I would like to have

          12   marked for identification as, I believe, Exhibit 190.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That is correct.  We'll mark

          14   it as Exhibit 190.

          15             MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you have a title for it?

          17             MR. WRIGHT:  Gulf Power 2011 TYSP Excerpt.

          18             And if the company wants the whole plan in,

          19   I'm happy to put it in.  If so, I would prefer to do so

          20   electronically as opposed to killing a few more trees.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Go ahead.  We'll let them

          22   ask if they need it.

          23             MR. WRIGHT:  Pardon?

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll let them ask if they

          25   want it all in.
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           1             MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you, sir.

           2             (Exhibit 190 marked for identification.)

           3   BY MR. WRIGHT:

           4        Q    Are you involved in preparing the company's

           5   Ten-Year Site Plan, Mr. Burroughs?

           6        A    I am not the sole responsible person for

           7   developing it.  That is generally developed by Ray Grove

           8   and some folks that he work with.  But, of course, I am

           9   involved.

          10        Q    You'll agree that the excerpt I distributed,

          11   which includes page 68 of text and also Schedule 9, that

          12   page 68 represents the company's preferred and potential

          13   sites for capacity additions over the planning horizon;

          14   correct?

          15        A    Yes.

          16        Q    And I'm sure you'll also agree that the sites

          17   identified here are Plant Crist, Plant Smith, and Plant

          18   Scholz, as well as a greenfield site at Shoal River in

          19   Walton County; correct?

          20        A    That's correct.

          21        Q    Now I note that the Caryville site is not

          22   included here; correct?

          23        A    That is correct.

          24        Q    You've used the phrase both, I guess, in your

          25   testimony and in this document, the Ten-Year Site Plan,
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           1   about your need beginning to develop.  Can you give me

           2   some bounds about what that means?  Does it mean you're

           3   going to have a need for sure in 2023 or 2022, or

           4   sometime in that general time frame, or what?

           5        A    When you see the statement, "because the

           6   company's next need for capacity does not begin to

           7   develop until 2022," in 2022 our latest analyses show

           8   that we have about a 30-megawatt need.  We have about a

           9   30-megawatt need that develops in 2022.

          10        Q    Thank you.

          11        A    In 2023 you will add 885 megawatts to that due

          12   to Central Alabama Power purchase agreement expiring.

          13   So that's when we first start to see the need develop,

          14   and it's going to accelerate dramatically about five

          15   months later.

          16        Q    So other things equal, and in particular let's

          17   assume for the purposes of this question that the

          18   environmental regulations of which you just spoke do not

          19   cause the company to shut down your coal fleet, other

          20   things equal, in, like, 2013 I should expect to see a

          21   need in 2023 of 800 odd megawatts showing up in the out

          22   year 2023, that site plan?

          23        A    So you're assuming that the economy is not

          24   going to bounce back in a great way.  You're assuming

          25   that the housing industry may not pick up.  So you're,
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           1   making -- you're asking me to make a lot of assumptions

           2   to assume that we'll have in the neighborhood of a

           3   920-megawatt need.

           4             But, you know, since you're asking me to

           5   assume, I'll assume the economy is going to start to

           6   pick up between now and ten years from now.  And as

           7   such, the need is going to be even greater.  And if we

           8   have to shut down coal-fired units, then you can add a

           9   lot of additional megawatts on top of that.

          10             So, again, the need is going to develop.  The

          11   question is how much.  And also the question is, which

          12   direction do we take to fill that need?

          13        Q    Thank you.  I want to ask you a few questions

          14   about the company's consideration of nuclear options.

          15   If Gulf were to build a nuclear plant, do you have any

          16   idea what it would be?

          17        A    I don't understand that question.

          18        Q    Well, for example, in response to a question

          19   by Ms. Kaufman, you said the typical size, in your

          20   understanding, the typical size for a nuclear power

          21   plant is in the range of 1100 to 1200-megawatts.  Now

          22   you did testify to that; correct?

          23        A    Oh, yes, I did.

          24        Q    Okay.  That's, in my understanding that's

          25   pretty consistent with the size of a couple of current
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           1   different models that are available, including the

           2   Westinghouse AP1000; correct?

           3        A    That's correct.

           4        Q    Would it be your thought that if Gulf were to

           5   build a nuclear power plant, would it be something like

           6   an AP1000, 1100, 1200-megawatt unit?

           7        A    If you're asking me to assume ten years out,

           8   based on what we know today, then we would most likely

           9   look at something like the AP1000, because, as part of

          10   Southern Company, we've already evaluated that

          11   particular technology.  And it is in fact being

          12   constructed over at one of our sister companies, and we

          13   understand that technology and we think it is going to

          14   be something that's going to be very successful for the

          15   future.

          16             So there is no reason why we would take a

          17   different direction, if you ask me to assume ten years

          18   out.

          19        Q    Do you have any idea how much a one-unit

          20   station would cost?  And you can answer that in terms of

          21   overnight construction costs today or what you think the

          22   in-service cost would be in 2025, or whatever, however

          23   else you want to specify your answer.

          24             MR. GUYTON:  Commissioners, we're going beyond

          25   the scope of this witness's testimony.  I mean, all that
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           1   he is addressing is a potential plant site held for

           2   future use, not the potential construction of a nuclear

           3   unit.  It's just simply an option of land for a

           4   potential build.  We're into plant design cost, matters

           5   that go well beyond his direct.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow the witness to

           7   answer the question, just to get a ballpark.

           8             THE WITNESS:  A ballpark cost would be, oh,

           9   70, 7,500 to 7,800 dollars per kilowatt hour.

          10   BY MR. WRIGHT:

          11        Q    I think you meant a kilowatt?

          12        A    Per kilowatt.

          13        Q    Would you have an EPC contractor to stand

          14   behind that cost?

          15        A    No, I don't.  And, again, that's not something

          16   that I testify to.  I don't know where you're going

          17   there.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You're going a little deep

          19   now, Mr. Wright.

          20             MR. WRIGHT:  Pardon?

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I said you're going a little

          22   too deep now.

          23             MR. WRIGHT:  Okay.

          24   BY MR. WRIGHT:

          25        Q    Who ultimately -- what entity ultimately
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           1   decides what plants Gulf would build?

           2        A    What entity decides what plant we build?

           3        Q    Yes, sir.  That's my question.

           4        A    Well, I'm trying to get some clarification.

           5   So, again, let me -- ask me specifically what you, what

           6   you want me to answer, because I don't get the question.

           7        Q    Well, let me ask you this.  If Gulf were going

           8   to consider building a nuclear power plant that's going

           9   to cost in the range of 8 or $9 billion, would that have

          10   to be approved by the Southern Company board of

          11   directors?

          12        A    I can't tell you that.

          13        Q    What corporate entity within the Southern

          14   system would have to sign off on such an expenditure?

          15        A    Well, first of all, Gulf Power would have to

          16   sign off on it.  And something that large, of course we

          17   would collaborate with Southern Company on it.  But I

          18   can't tell you that the Southern Company board is going

          19   to have to sign off on that.

          20        Q    Okay.

          21        A    Furthermore, I don't understand what that has

          22   to do with us maintaining an option to build a nuclear

          23   plant in the future.

          24             MR. WRIGHT:  Well, Mr. Chair, in our view, it

          25   has to do with whether preserving that option is
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           1   reasonable and prudent for the interest of Gulf's

           2   customers.

           3   BY MR. WRIGHT:

           4        Q    If you know, how much, if any, of the existing

           5   Plant Vogtle costs, the existing nuclear units at Plant

           6   Vogtle, do Gulf and its customers pay for?

           7        A    I'm not aware of any --

           8             MR. GUYTON:  Objection.  Goes beyond scope of

           9   this witness's testimony.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow it.  I, I think

          11   the witness's testimony is the possibility of a nuclear

          12   plant being built on the piece of property that you have

          13   an option on, and I think he's just asking some probing

          14   questions.

          15             THE WITNESS:  Repeat the question.

          16   BY MR. WRIGHT:

          17        Q    Yeah.  The question was how much, if any, of

          18   the existing Plant Vogtle nuclear units do Gulf and its

          19   customers pay for?

          20        A    I'm not aware of any.

          21        Q    Do you know whether any of Plant Vogtle's

          22   costs are factored into the Southern Company

          23   intercompany interchange contract?

          24        A    I'm not aware of any.

          25        Q    If you know, how much, if any, of the proposed
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           1   additional, the two new units at Plant Vogtle would Gulf

           2   and its customers pay for upon completion?

           3        A    I'm not aware of any.

           4        Q    Is there another witness in this case who

           5   might know?

           6        A    No, I don't.

           7        Q    Okay.  Thanks.

           8             If Gulf were to build an 1100 or 1200-megawatt

           9   nuclear plant, do you have an idea of how much of its

          10   output would stay in Florida as opposed to going to

          11   other Southern operating companies?

          12             MR. GUYTON:  I object.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think you're going, I

          14   think you're going a bit too far.

          15             MR. WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman, yes, sir.  I am --

          16   the proffer is this.  They represent that this option

          17   has value to Gulf's customers.  If they're going to

          18   build a plant, I think it's fair for us to know how much

          19   of the value of that plant is going to stay in Florida

          20   versus going to Alabama, Georgia, or Mississippi.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  But I think from the

          22   testimony I've heard so far, you're asking him to

          23   speculate to things that are quite a bit down the road.

          24   BY MR. WRIGHT:

          25        Q    A follow-up question regarding your Exhibit 2.
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           1   This is a follow-up -- well, a question about your

           2   Exhibit 2.  Whether it's a follow-up or not is up for

           3   grabs.

           4             Am I correct that there are no significant,

           5   and when I say significant, I mean in terms of

           6   megawattage, no significant retirements before about 20

           7   -- about 2030?  You've got a couple of 75-megawatt units

           8   that are scheduled to retire in '24 and '26 and some

           9   little ones that are scheduled to retire in '18.  Is

          10   that right?

          11        A    I show that we have several units scheduled to

          12   retire between now and 2018.  Your statement was, do we

          13   have any significant retirements prior to 2030?

          14        Q    That was my question.  Yes, sir.

          15        A    We don't have significant retirements planned

          16   between now and 2030.

          17        Q    Thank you.

          18             So just to wrap up a loop of our earlier

          19   conversation, the real driver for your -- drivers for

          20   your need, say, over the next 15 years are going to be

          21   the environmental regulations and the expiration of your

          22   Shell PPA; is that correct?

          23        A    The need that's going to -- big need that's

          24   going to develop is going to be ten years out, and the

          25   primary driver is the Central Alabama PPA.
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           1        Q    And, again, subject to the possible impacts of

           2   the environmental regulations that you discussed;

           3   correct?

           4        A    The PPA has nothing to do with environmental

           5   regulations.

           6        Q    I apologize if my question was ambiguous.

           7        A    Okay.

           8        Q    I certainly understand that.  What I was

           9   meaning to ask is doesn't your need over the next ten

          10   years depend on whether the environmental regulations

          11   cause Gulf to decommission one or more of its

          12   significant coal plants?

          13        A    That is incorrect.

          14        Q    Please tell me why.

          15        A    Well, as I previously stated, we've got a

          16   30-megawatt need that's developing in 2022.  The

          17   following year, in May of 2023, the Central Alabama PPA

          18   will expire, 885 megawatts.  So if you just do the math

          19   there, you're in the neighborhood of 915 megawatts,

          20   assuming nothing else happened.  And that is a large

          21   assumption by anybody's part right now, that nothing is

          22   going to happen in the environmental arena that's not

          23   going to accelerate that.

          24             So, again, retirements, environmental

          25   regulation has nothing to do with the 915-megawatt need
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           1   that's going to develop in 2023.

           2        Q    Thank you.  I understand that.

           3             What I was trying to ask is would -- is it

           4   possible that environmental regulations kicking in in

           5   2015 or so could accelerate a need to an earlier date

           6   than 2022 or 2023?

           7        A    The answer to that question is yes.

           8             MR. WRIGHT:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all I

           9   had.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

          11             MS. BARRERA:  Just a few questions.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is your mike on?

          13             MS. BARRERA:  Pardon?

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is your mike on?

          15             MS. BARRERA:  Oh.  Sorry.  I always do that.

          16                         EXAMINATION

          17   BY MS. BARRERA:

          18        Q    Mr. Burroughs, as Vice President of Power

          19   Generation and Senior Production Officer, you're Gulf's

          20   witness regarding issues number 23 and 24; is that

          21   correct?

          22        A    I believe you're correct, but let me turn to

          23   that and make sure.

          24        Q    Issue number 23 is, "Should an adjustment be

          25   made to plant held for future use for the Caryville
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           1   plant site?"

           2             And then Issue 24 is, "Should the north

           3   Escambia County nuclear plant site and associated costs

           4   identified by Gulf be included in plant held for future

           5   use?  And if not, should Gulf be permitted to continue

           6   to accrue AFUDC on the site?"

           7        A    I am responsible for both of those issues.

           8        Q    Okay.

           9             MR. GUYTON:  In addition to other witnesses.

          10             MS. BARRERA:  Yes.

          11   BY MS. BARRERA:

          12        Q    And these issues refer also -- well, to land

          13   held for future use, as we stated.

          14             As Gulf's vice president, your duties include

          15   power generation for fuels, for resource planning, for

          16   renewables; is that correct?

          17        A    That is correct.

          18        Q    And do you recall having your testimony taken

          19   in deposition on Thursday, November 17th, 2011, in this

          20   case?

          21        A    I do.

          22        Q    And as vice president and senior production

          23   officer, you were Gulf's corporate representative at

          24   this deposition; is that correct?

          25        A    That's correct.
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           1        Q    And before you should be the transcript of

           2   your deposition identified in the Composite Exhibit List

           3   as Staff's Exhibit No. 147.

           4        A    I don't have that.

           5             MS. BARRERA:  Okay.  Excuse me for a second.

           6   They were supposed to be handed out.

           7             MR. GUYTON:  We'll stipulate that that's been

           8   identified as Exhibit 147.

           9             MS. BARRERA:  Okay.  Thank you.

          10   BY MS. BARRERA:

          11        Q    And is this deposition transcript -- is this

          12   the deposition transcript which you signed a true and

          13   correct transcript of the questions you were asked and

          14   the answers you gave at the deposition?

          15        A    It appears to be.

          16             MS. BARRERA:  Okay.  Mr. Chair, at this time I

          17   ask that Exhibit 147 be moved into the record.

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll wait until after we're

          19   done with the witness before we move the exhibits into

          20   the record.

          21             MS. BARRERA:  Okay.  Which I thought we were.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You want to move -- this is

          23   just a deposition?

          24             MS. BARRERA:  Yes, sir.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We'll move the
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           1   deposition.

           2             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I object, Mr. Chairman.  At

           3   the appropriate point I want to register an objection

           4   and explain the basis for it.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Please continue.

           6             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  During the conversation

           7   yesterday regarding the use of depositions, Mr. Young

           8   referred to Rule 1.330 as governing the consideration of

           9   depositions.  And I agree that that is the appropriate

          10   rule, but I disagree that so far the Commission has

          11   considered that rule in full context.

          12             The basis for our objection to this and

          13   similar depositions is that it doesn't fit those

          14   occasions prescribed by the Supreme Court of Florida

          15   through its rules of court, which are applicable to this

          16   situation in terms of what the court permits as the

          17   appropriate use of depositions.

          18             And to, to expedite your consideration of

          19   that, I've highlighted the language in 1.330 that I

          20   would like for you and the other Commissioners to see as

          21   I make my argument.  It would just take a second to

          22   distribute.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          24             (Pause.)

          25             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Chairman and
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           1   Commissioners, as you see, Rule 1.330 of the Florida

           2   Rules of Civil Procedure promulgated by the Florida

           3   Supreme Court states those occasions when the use of the

           4   deposition is permitted if in accordance with any of the

           5   following provisions.

           6             The first one is that a deposition may be used

           7   by any party for the purpose of contradicting or

           8   impeaching the testimony of the deponent as a witness.

           9   That is not the situation in this case.

          10             The second one refers to someone who has been

          11   designated under 1.310(b)(6) to testify on behalf of a

          12   public or private corporation.  In that situation, the

          13   party may be used by an adverse party for any purpose.

          14             There are two dimensions of this particular

          15   provision.  First of all, the designation of a deponent

          16   under 1.310(b)(6) is a subset of the larger universe of

          17   depositions, and that's why I handed out the second

          18   document, which is Rule 1.310.

          19             You'll see that this particular avenue for

          20   asking for a deposition is highlighted in subsection

          21   (6), and that is a special use deposition.  And it

          22   arises when the person requesting a deposition can only

          23   specify the subject matter and cannot identify the

          24   individual who should respond.

          25             And by way of illustration, perhaps an
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           1   attorney for someone who has an employment issue might

           2   issue a notice of deposition asking the corporation to

           3   designate someone in human resources who can respond to

           4   questions about employee evaluations or termination

           5   criteria.  And in that situation the corporation would

           6   identify someone, designate someone to respond at the

           7   deposition.

           8             Again, that isn't the case here.  I'm sure

           9   that Mr. Burroughs is, was deposed because he's a

          10   witness in the case and the notice of deposition

          11   identified him as such.

          12             Further, the other dimension of this is that,

          13   even if one has been designated, the full use of the

          14   deposition, as prescribed by the court, is a party may

          15   be used by an adverse party for any purpose.  And I

          16   question whether the Commission Staff is an adverse

          17   party for that purpose.

          18             I understand Staff -- Staff has described to

          19   me their, their role as building the record for the

          20   Commission's consideration and being neutral.  The idea

          21   of Staff being an adverse party seems not to fit that

          22   circumstance.  And for those two reasons, sub (2)

          23   doesn't seem to fit.

          24             The third paragraph identifies those occasions

          25   which are more typical, and the court has said that the
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           1   deposition can be used in any of these situations:  The

           2   witness is dead.  Thankfully that's not the case.  The

           3   witness is at a greater distance than 100 miles.  That's

           4   not the case; he's here and available to answer

           5   questions.  Unable to testify because of age, illness,

           6   infirmity, or imprisonment.  Mr. Burroughs looks like a

           7   very fit individual to me.

           8             (E) describes some discretion that the

           9   presiding officer has, and it's important to look at the

          10   standard that the court established for exercising that

          11   discretion.  Upon application and notice that such

          12   exceptional circumstances exist as to make it desirable,

          13   in the interest of justice and with due regard to the

          14   importance of presenting the testimony of witnesses

          15   orally in open court, to allow the deposition to be

          16   used.

          17             I want to mention two things about this.

          18   First of all, we Intervenors are not the only parties

          19   who regard the value of live testimony in open

          20   proceedings as important.  The Supreme Court has

          21   established that as, as important also.  And so the

          22   court is looking for exceptional circumstances as

          23   reasons to overcome the desirability of having live

          24   testimony.

          25             As I understand it, the situation here is that
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           1   Staff would prefer to put the deposition in as opposed

           2   to asking the same questions, which they have the

           3   ability and opportunity to do here.  I don't think that

           4   constitutes exceptional circumstances that would satisfy

           5   the standard that the court has laid down here.

           6             The next one is that the deposition can be

           7   used if the witness is an expert or skilled witness.

           8   And here two comments are, I think, called for.  First

           9   of all, by expert or skilled witness, I believe the rule

          10   has in mind someone who is here in a consulting capacity

          11   offering opinion testimony.  If someone who's in a

          12   profession or even in a craft trade is considered as

          13   skilled and expert by virtue of training and experience

          14   in the occupation, then that would be so commonplace as

          15   to render this criterion a nullity.

          16             As a matter of fact, I'm sure he didn't have

          17   this distinction in mind when he proffered the

          18   testimony, but in his introductory remarks,

          19   Mr. Crosswhite noted that Gulf Power is going to sponsor

          20   several witnesses, some of them employees and others are

          21   consultants who have a special expertise in particular

          22   areas.  So I think that same distinction holds -- is

          23   applicable to here.

          24             But even if a particular witness is deemed to

          25   be skilled and expert for purposes of this avenue for
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           1   entering a deposition, notice that there are other

           2   conditions which indicate to me, and I hope to you, that

           3   the use of depositions instead of live testimony should

           4   not be a matter of course.

           5             For instance, under sub (c), the introduction

           6   in evidence of the deposition or any part of it for any

           7   purpose other than contradicting or impeaching the

           8   deponent makes the deponent the witness of the party

           9   introducing the deposition.  In other words, that would

          10   make the witness who has been deposed Staff's witness,

          11   when I think that is not appropriate in and of itself.

          12             But in addition, by making the deponent the

          13   Staff's witness, that creates the effect of introducing

          14   additional testimony that has not been prefiled.  And

          15   you'll notice that the final sentence that I've

          16   highlighted says, "At the trial or hearing, any party

          17   may rebut any relevant evidence contained in a

          18   deposition, whether introduced by that party or by any

          19   other party."

          20             That suggests to me and I think would suggest

          21   to you that the notion that the use of depositions is

          22   going to be something that is an expedient or

          23   economizing feature may not be valid if any party feels

          24   prejudiced by the introduction of that and says I invoke

          25   my right to rebut that by, by appropriate means.

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         799

           1             And for those reasons, again, I hope I'm not

           2   coming across as being obstructive.  That certainly

           3   isn't the case.  And I want to make the point that these

           4   apply in the absence of stipulations, and we and other

           5   Intervenors have participated in many of those,

           6   including stipulated depositions.  But we contend that

           7   where no stipulation is in effect and where the witness

           8   is available, the court has prescribed the, the uses

           9   that are permitted, and we have not yet heard from Staff

          10   any justification that satisfies these criteria.

          11             And that's the nature of the objection, and I

          12   appreciate your allowing me to develop it.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Kaufman?

          14             MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I'm not going to

          15   belabor the point.  I think that Mr. McGlothlin has ably

          16   taken you through the rule and the limited circumstances

          17   under which depositions can be used, and so FIPUG would

          18   join in his argument, and we also object to the use of

          19   depositions in this manner.

          20             MR. WRIGHT:  We join in Mr. McGlothlin's

          21   argument.  Thank you.  Citizen's argument.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I have a question before I

          23   go to Staff for comment.

          24             If Staff were to ask the same questions that

          25   they asked in deposition here of this witness right now,
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           1   would that make that testimony sufficient?

           2             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  As a matter of fact, I

           3   believe that is the better course.  That is a part of

           4   the reason for the objection, so that the triers of fact

           5   can assess credibility and so that the importance of the

           6   live testimony that the court reflected in its

           7   limitations for depositions can be given effect.

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  But explain to me how that

           9   would be different than if the Staff asked the questions

          10   before or asked the questions now, how does that make it

          11   any different?

          12             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Well, the difference would be

          13   that it is in live testimony before the triers of fact,

          14   and with all the other appurtenances to the desirability

          15   of live testimony.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So you're adding a lot of

          17   credibility to the fact that it's live testimony and

          18   just not something that we're reading in, something that

          19   we're reading in the record later?

          20             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Well, I am.  But with

          21   respect, I believe the court has, has done that.  And

          22   I'm citing the standard established by the court, in

          23   addition to the other measures that I indicated, such as

          24   the fact that by, by virtue of doing this the Staff is

          25   making the deponent the Staff's own witness.  And, and
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           1   the possibility, not the certainties, I agree, but the

           2   possibility that there may be something in this

           3   deposition or others that are likely to follow that

           4   would lead a party to, to wish to rebut it, in which

           5   case you have that procedural complication.

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Gulf, any comments?

           7             MR. GUYTON:  Mr. Chairman, I think the, the

           8   objection is somewhat misguided.  The rule being invoked

           9   has to do with use of depositions in court proceedings.

          10   That's the title of Rule 1.330.  The applicable

          11   provision for this Commission doesn't look to the use of

          12   the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure.  It looks to the

          13   Administrative Procedures Act.  And it's a statute that

          14   I read to you yesterday.

          15             The standard there is irrelevant, immaterial,

          16   unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded, but all

          17   other evidence of a type commonly relied upon by

          18   reasonably prudent persons in the conduct of their

          19   affairs shall be admissible, whether or not such

          20   evidence would be admissible in a trial in the courts of

          21   Florida.  That is the standard before the Commission

          22   today in terms of ruling on this.

          23             I would respectfully submit that even under

          24   Rule 1.330 there is opportunity for the Commission to

          25   decide upon, on Section (a)(3)(E), that there are

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         802

           1   exceptional circumstances here that make it desirable,

           2   or, under subsection (F), the witness is an expert or

           3   skilled witness.  There is no question that every

           4   witness that Gulf is offering in this case has expertise

           5   and skill, as is defined by the evidence code.

           6             The only argument that I've heard that has

           7   been offered by Public Counsel is that you're not going

           8   to have the benefit of assessing the witness's

           9   credibility.  I think you've had plenty of opportunity

          10   to assess this witness's credibility through

          11   cross-examination up 'til now.  I don't think the

          12   consideration of a deposition is going to make -- I

          13   think the conclusions are drawn.

          14             So, from our perspective, we think the motion

          15   is misguided.  We have no opposition to the inclusion of

          16   a deposition.

          17             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

          18             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Could I respond to Mr. Guyton

          19   very briefly?

          20             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          21             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Guyton referred to the

          22   Administrative Procedures Act.  That act also is the

          23   source of the ability of parties to an administrative

          24   proceeding to engage in discovery.  And the standard

          25   there is that the party can engage in discovery using
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           1   the tools prescribed by and in the manner prescribed by

           2   rules of court, and that is, that is the nexus between

           3   the rule of court that I cited to you and its use in

           4   this proceeding.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

           6             MS. BARRERA:  To address the last issue

           7   brought up by Mr. McGlothlin, I do want to explain that

           8   in several trials that I have been in, when we do

           9   discovery depositions and we ask the corporation to

          10   provide the person with the most knowledge on the

          11   specific subject, it's because we don't know who that

          12   person is.  In this situation, the person with the most

          13   knowledge to represent the corporation in a specific

          14   issue has been already provided by Gulf, so that we

          15   don't need to do a special notice of taking deposition

          16   for that purpose.

          17             It still does not take away the issue that

          18   this is a corporate representative and speaks for a

          19   corporate entity, and that is the rule -- that's

          20   allowable under Rule 1.330.  The exceptional

          21   circumstances, as counsel for Gulf has pointed out, are

          22   that these proceedings in front of the Public Service

          23   Commission are way different than anything, frankly,

          24   that I've ever done.

          25             These proceedings, for example, allow the
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           1   filing of prefiled testimony.  There are several

           2   witnesses even here today that are not going to be shown

           3   to the Commission whose testimony has been stipulated

           4   to.  So you won't have the chance to observe their

           5   credibility.  This witness is before you at this point

           6   in time, and you've had the opportunity to observe the

           7   witness.

           8             I also want to respond to the argument, while

           9   Mr. McGlothlin and Intervenors have very carefully

          10   reviewed the Rule 1.330, they have not cited any

          11   authority to interpret that rule.  I have two cases,

          12   Castaneda v. Redlands Christian Migrant Association, and

          13   also Kelley v. Lorrell H. Webb.  In both of those cases,

          14   the court, the trial court decided that, not to admit

          15   the depositions because they wanted to see the witness

          16   present.

          17             In one case the witness was standing right

          18   there in the courtroom, or sitting right there in the

          19   courtroom, and the judge said, you know, I'm not going

          20   to admit the deposition into evidence.  Both the 5th DCA

          21   and the 4th DCA overruled those decisions of the trial

          22   court, insofar as they allowed the introduction of the

          23   deposition as evidence in the proceeding.

          24             And let me quote from -- "The deposition of a

          25   party" -- interpreting 1.330(a)(2).  "The deposition of
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           1   a party or of anyone who at the time of taking a

           2   deposition was an officer, director, or managing agent

           3   of a person designated under 1.310(b)(6) or 1.320(a) to

           4   testify on behalf of a public or private corporation, a

           5   partnership, or association of a governmental agency may

           6   be used for any purpose.

           7             "While we appreciate the trial court's

           8   preference for appellee's in-court testimony and commend

           9   its obvious desire, we feel that the court's concern

          10   with these matters could have unfairly influenced

          11   appellant to prematurely rest her case.

          12             "The deposition may be used by any party for

          13   any purpose and such a deposition may be used,

          14   notwithstanding that the deponent is available to

          15   testify at trial."

          16             There's also the case of Monsalvatge & Company

          17   of Miami, Inc., versus Ryder Leasing.  It's a 3rd DCA

          18   case from 1963, saying the adverse party use of

          19   deposition of party, or officer, director or managing

          20   agent of public or private corporation is not

          21   conditioned upon availability of the deponent.

          22             In this situation, Mr. McGlothlin has stated

          23   that Staff is not an adverse party.  That's my

          24   understanding in the short time that I've been here,

          25   that we obtain evidence in order for the Commission to
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           1   make its ruling based on the big -- the most record that

           2   is available.

           3             Under the Rules of Administrative Procedure,

           4   this is the exigent circumstance and this is the reason

           5   that you're allowed to go beyond the strictures of the

           6   evidence code and beyond the strictures of the Florida

           7   Rules of Civil Procedure.  So at this time I would like

           8   to move again the deposition into evidence.

           9             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Very brief comment on the

          10   case law citations.  I believe both of those involved

          11   situations in which the deposition was performed

          12   pursuant to the designation criterion.  And I disagree

          13   with the statement that the deposition of this witness

          14   and others in this case occurred pursuant to that.

          15   There are, it's a separate provision that provides the

          16   deposition of a person, and that is invoked when you

          17   know who you want to talk to.  And that differs from and

          18   is distinct from the designation criteria, which is the

          19   one under which both those cases occurred.

          20             MS. KAUFMAN:  Chairman Graham, could I make a

          21   brief comment?

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Please.

          23             MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.  I just wanted to

          24   focus for a minute on the adverse party criteria in

          25   subsection (a)(2) of the rule that we've been

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         807

           1   discussing.  And I have two, two comments.  And that is

           2   if you go forward and allow the depositions to be

           3   entered by Staff, then I think you'll have to consider

           4   Staff to be an adverse party, and you would have to

           5   allow the other parties the opportunity to conduct

           6   cross-examination after Staff does theirs.

           7             And I also would suggest to you that

           8   subsection (2) is a very limited and specific situation

           9   involving the designation of a corporate representative,

          10   which has not been done in this case at all, and it is

          11   not related to section (3), and it certainly does not

          12   create an exceptional circumstance that would overcome

          13   the explicit criteria that's set out in the rule.

          14             Staff has, has, as Ms. Barrera said, often

          15   said that they are not an adverse party, and I think

          16   that they can't have it both ways.  So I would suggest

          17   to you that both of those rules provide a strong basis

          18   for not proceeding with introducing depositions.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Helton?

          20             MS. HELTON:  There's one rule that no one has

          21   mentioned to you today.  It's found in the Uniform Rules

          22   of Procedure, in 28-106.211, Conduct of Proceedings.

          23   And for purposes of this, you are the presiding officer

          24   today as the Chairman.  "The presiding officer before

          25   whom a case is pending may issue any orders necessary to
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           1   effectuate discovery, to prevent delay, and to promote

           2   the just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of all

           3   aspects of the case."

           4             I believe that by admitting the deposition

           5   transcripts you are doing just that.  You have -- are

           6   promoting the just, speedy, and inexpensive

           7   determination of all aspects of the case.

           8             As has already been stated on the record

           9   today, you have had a chance to watch this witness in

          10   action.  You have had a chance to judge this witness's

          11   credibility.

          12             I hear the arguments with respect to whether

          13   Staff is an adverse party.  You have heard me say, and

          14   you will hear me say again, Staff is not a true party in

          15   ratemaking proceedings.  I still believe that.

          16             However, I believe that the spirit of the rule

          17   can be met by allowing the depositions in.  I believe

          18   that this witness is an expert witness.  The

          19   Commission's practice is to view all witnesses that

          20   appear before it as expert witnesses, unless the witness

          21   is clearly a fact witness.  That is not the case here.

          22             I believe that it would be appropriate to

          23   allow the deposition into the record, as requested by

          24   Ms. Barrera and as agreed to by Gulf Power.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now according to this Rule
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           1   1.330, it's got to be an expert witness or a skilled

           2   witness.  So even if he didn't designate himself as an

           3   expert witness, the company has put him forward as a

           4   skilled witness.  Is that correct?

           5             MS. HELTON:  Well, there's several components

           6   to the rule.  I believe whether he is an expert or a

           7   skilled witness, and I think he -- I can't speak for

           8   what, how the company is bringing him forward, but I

           9   believe, based on the discussion today, that he is an

          10   expert witness.  There has been nothing done here in

          11   this proceeding to, to call him anything but that.

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          13             Commissioner Balbis.

          14             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          15   And I just want to give my personal opinion on this

          16   matter.  It certainly is not a legal opinion by any

          17   means.

          18             But one thing that Mr. Moyle, I believe,

          19   mentioned yesterday was that this is a fact-finding

          20   body.  And our job, one of our jobs is to find out the

          21   facts and enter information into the record.  And my

          22   assumption is that, you know, the various tools, whether

          23   it's the Administrative Procedures Act, whether it's the

          24   Rules of Civil Procedure, Uniform Rules of Procedure,

          25   any one of those tools are used to have an efficient
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           1   process, an efficient hearing process.

           2             I doubt that this Commission, however long

           3   ago, that agreed or the Legislature agreed to use these

           4   tools looked at it as a way to find technicalities to

           5   keep information from being entered into the record.  We

           6   have restraints here on, on information we can get.  We

           7   have manpower issues, we have a lot of issues we have to

           8   deal with, but the main purpose and main goal of us

           9   today is to get as much information into the record so

          10   we can make a decision.

          11             And my concern is, and maybe it's the

          12   nonlawyer in me, is that we're spending a lot of time

          13   and energy on looking for technicalities to keep

          14   information out of the record, and I think it could be

          15   better spent on moving forward with this process.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Balbis.

          17             The deposition comes in.

          18             Staff.

          19             MS. BARRERA:  We have no further questions of

          20   this witness.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?

          22             Commissioner Brown.

          23             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I just have a quick

          24   clarification question about the north Escambia County

          25   land.  Is it being held as an option solely for nuclear
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           1   or for other generation needs?  I got a little confused

           2   during the testimony.

           3             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Yes, Commissioner.

           4             The north Escambia site primary function,

           5   primary usage is an option for a nuclear plant site, if

           6   needed.  It also has the capability to support a

           7   coal-fired, a combined cycle, and other things, if

           8   needed.  But if it wasn't for the fact that we wanted to

           9   and needed to preserve a nuclear option, then the north

          10   Escambia County site would not be an item of discussion.

          11   So that's its primary use, but it has other uses also.

          12             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brisé.

          14             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          15             I have one -- or maybe two questions, and I'm

          16   not certain if you would be the most appropriate witness

          17   or if Mr. Grove might be more appropriate.

          18             We've heard testimony about Gulf's avoidance

          19   of a rate case due to its energy procurement program

          20   with other providers.  Would an expansion of that model

          21   provide better savings for customers moving forward, or

          22   are you at the point -- I'm sure you've all done some

          23   breakeven analysis with respect to how that's working.

          24   Are you at the point where you need to be considering

          25   other options?
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           1             THE WITNESS:  I apologize.  I just, I didn't

           2   completely understand the question about energy.  I just

           3   didn't completely understand the question.  I want to

           4   make sure I answer it correctly.

           5             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Sure.  No problem.

           6             It is my understanding that you all purchased

           7   power from other producers.

           8             THE WITNESS:  Okay.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  So obviously you

          10   all have done some analysis to determine how long you

          11   could sustain that practice before you actually have to

          12   go out and build your own plant.  So my question is are

          13   you at the point now where that is becoming an issue, or

          14   can you expand on that, elaborate on that for me?

          15             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  All right.  I understand

          16   now.  I apologize I didn't get it the first time.

          17             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  No, no problem.

          18   Sometimes I'm unclear, I guess.

          19             THE WITNESS:  When we entered into the power

          20   purchase agreement with Dahlberg and with Coral

          21   Baconton, that was between 2009 and 2014, they allowed

          22   us to bridge a gap.  And then we entered into the power

          23   purchase agreement with Central Alabama that allowed us

          24   to bridge a gap through 2023.

          25             And the reason those power purchase agreements
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           1   were so important is because there is so much

           2   uncertainty regarding environmental regulations that we

           3   did not feel where we were in the optimum position to

           4   make the best decision for our customers, not knowing

           5   what was going to happen.  So these power purchase

           6   agreements were available to us, and so that's why we

           7   entered into them.

           8             Now those expire.  They may not even be

           9   available at the time that we're ready to make a

          10   decision.  So, again, if it's the best option at that

          11   time, we will enter into other power purchase agreements

          12   or renew those.  But not knowing whether those will be

          13   available when they expire, we can't make that decision

          14   at this point.

          15             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Okay.  A more general

          16   question.  If you can talk about the fuel mix that Gulf

          17   currently employs or has.

          18             THE WITNESS:  At this point we feel like we

          19   have a fairly good mixture.  You know, we have the

          20   combined cycle, CC unit over at Plant Smith, and then we

          21   have the coal units, and we have a CT.

          22             Our concern is if we have to start shutting

          23   down multiple coal units, or just, say, most if not all

          24   of it, we're concerned about relying strictly on gas.

          25             The reason is, as we all know, the price of
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           1   gas is very volatile.  And we feel like that will expose

           2   our customers to dramatic shifts in fuel prices that we

           3   don't feel like is the best thing for them, which is one

           4   of the reasons, one of the reasons we were looking at a

           5   nuclear site, and why it's a real viable option for our

           6   customers in the future, because the fuel is very

           7   stable.  You don't have wild swings in fuel prices.

           8             So, with that said, we feel like we need to --

           9   our CEO of the whole Southern Company uses this phrase,

          10   we need to have all quivers -- all arrows in the quiver,

          11   so to speak.  We need clean coal, we need gas, we need

          12   nuclear, we need renewables, we need all of it so that

          13   we can mitigate the impact on our customers when there

          14   are price shifts in different types of fuel types.

          15             So, again, we don't know exactly what that mix

          16   needs to be, but we don't feel like it's all gas.

          17   That's too much of a potential impact to our customers.

          18             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  And I think you answered

          19   the next question which I was going to pose, and I think

          20   I'll frame it a little bit differently.  If I'm a Gulf

          21   customer, how does keeping that nuclear option benefit

          22   me today?

          23             THE WITNESS:  Today, while we understand that

          24   any cost is a cost to someone, any increase impacts

          25   customers, and we understand that.  But for 26 cents on
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           1   a thousand-kilowatt-hour residential bill, we're able to

           2   reserve, preserve a nuclear option for our customers so

           3   that we're able to move in that direction, if necessary,

           4   if hazmat, which may roll out December 16th, if all of

           5   these other issues with coal combustion by-products and

           6   316(b) and ozone and additional greenhouse gas

           7   regulations, if those things develop such that coal

           8   becomes nonexistent or minimally existent in our

           9   territory, then nuclear would be the best option.

          10             Rhonda Alexander can get into a lot of

          11   analysis on this, but we've done our evaluation, and

          12   there are eight out of nine scenarios that show that

          13   nuclear is a great option for our customers.  When you

          14   look at low, medium, and high gas prices, 10, 20, and

          15   $30 CO2 prices, nuclear is a great option for our

          16   customers in eight out of those nine scenarios.

          17             So, for 26 cents, we feel like we've done the

          18   right thing to reserve that option for our customers.

          19             COMMISSIONER BRISÉ:  Thank you, Mr. Burroughs,

          20   and I certainly appreciate your testimony and the fact

          21   that you quantified what that actually means to

          22   consumers on a move-forward basis.  Thank you.

          23             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Burroughs, a quick

          24   question for you.  What is that land currently being

          25   used for right now?
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           1             THE WITNESS:  The north Escambia site?  We're

           2   in the process of continuing to purchase the remaining

           3   land sites, but it is being used as an option for our

           4   customers.

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I know, but is it just

           6   vacant land, is it timberland, is there cattle on there?

           7   I mean, what's currently on the land?  What is it being

           8   used for right now?

           9             THE WITNESS:  Well, there are homesites.

          10   There's a church campground.  There are timber.  A lot

          11   of it, a significant portion of it, was timberland.  So

          12   you've got homesites, you've got a church campground,

          13   you've got timber sites, and a lot of it is just hunting

          14   ground.  So those are generally the type things that are

          15   on that site right now.

          16             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So is the site currently

          17   generating some sort of revenue?

          18             THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of that.  Richard

          19   McMillan can give you an exact answer, or we can get it

          20   for you before the day is out.  But I'm not aware of it

          21   being used to generate any particular revenue.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thank you.

          23             Commissioner Balbis.

          24             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          25             Thank you, Mr. Burroughs.  I just have two
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           1   questions concerning the north Escambia site.  When was

           2   the decision made to purchase portions or all of that

           3   site?

           4             THE WITNESS:  We made the decision to purchase

           5   the north Escambia site on August the 26th, 2008.

           6             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And were you involved

           7   with that decision?

           8             THE WITNESS:  No, sir.  I was at Georgia Power

           9   at the time.

          10             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Redirect.

          12             MR. GUYTON:  Just a couple of questions.

          13                         EXAMINATION

          14   BY MR. GUYTON:

          15        Q    Mr. Burroughs, when you gave your errata to

          16   your exhibit on Schedule 7, you gave values in

          17   thousands.  Did you mean to give that in thousands or

          18   did you mean to give that in millions of dollars?

          19        A    I meant to give that in millions of dollars,

          20   and I misspoke.

          21        Q    Thank you.

          22             You were asked from the bench about Gulf's

          23   current fuel mix, and you made reference to gas, coal,

          24   and oil.  Are there any other fuels in use on Gulf's

          25   system besides those three fuels?
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           1        A    Yes, it is.  I misspoke again.  We do have a

           2   landfill gas renewable site that's 3 megawatts that

           3   we -- that actually went into service October of 2010.

           4        Q    And how does the cost of that fuel compare to

           5   other fuels on Gulf's system?

           6        A    The fuel at the Perdido landfill gas site is

           7   the lowest.  It's about $2.47 per million Btu.  It is

           8   the lowest fuel source for our customers.

           9             MR. GUYTON:  That's all we have.  We would

          10   move Exhibit 17.

          11             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Page 6, Exhibit 17, we'll

          12   move into the record.

          13             (Exhibit 17 admitted into the record.)

          14             MR. WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman, I move Exhibit 190.

          15             MR. GUYTON:  Is that the Ten-Year Site Plan?

          16             MR. WRIGHT:  It's the Ten-Year Site Plan

          17   excerpt.

          18             MR. GUYTON:  We'd ask that the entire Ten-Year

          19   Site Plan be inserted into the record rather than just

          20   the excerpt.  We'll be happy to provide copies to the

          21   Commission.

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are you going to provide the

          23   Ten-Year Site Plan then?

          24             MR. GUYTON:  Yes.

          25             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Well, so do it.
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           1             (Exhibit 190 admitted into the record.)

           2             MR. WRIGHT:  Just so I'm clear, then will

           3   Exhibit 190 then become the complete Gulf Power Ten-Year

           4   Site Plan?

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  That's correct.

           6             MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           7             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Chairman, I wanted to

           8   thank you and the Commissioners for allowing us to

           9   express our objection in full context of the rule on

          10   which we rely.  Probably there will be other depositions

          11   offered.  At that point I'll reduce my objection to a

          12   single sentence and refer back to this, this argument.

          13             I would like to inquire.  At some point in

          14   discussing this with Staff, there was some thought of

          15   offering only the Staff portion of the deposition.  I

          16   wonder what is the status of that?

          17             MS. KLANCKE:  Staff is amenable to

          18   accommodating the parties.  Our, our desire with respect

          19   to these depositions is to have the questions that Staff

          20   asked, as they, as we believe they are pertinent with

          21   regard to our issues and our analysis for your benefit.

          22   However, to the extent that we can accommodate the

          23   parties to exclude or identify certain pages of their

          24   cross-examination, as long as Gulf doesn't have an

          25   objection to it, we'd be happy to accommodate them.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  On a go-forward basis;

           2   correct?

           3             MS. KLANCKE:  Going forward, certainly.

           4             To date, I do not believe that there was any

           5   identified pages with respect to, with particularity

           6   specified to Staff.  But in going forward, to the extent

           7   possible, feasible, we can accommodate them.

           8             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  To the extent there is

           9   agreement on that, that would be preferable to OPC.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          11             MR. GUYTON:  Gulf would propose to have, if

          12   the depositions are going to go in, to have the entire

          13   deposition transcript inserted into the record.

          14             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, we'll see if there's

          15   objections to specifics, what those objections are.

          16             But, Mr. McGlothlin, I, I listened to the

          17   argument again today, because you had new facts or a new

          18   position, and I appreciate the position you're coming

          19   from.  Me being the, the layman, I depend a lot on my,

          20   on my staff as far as legal matters, and I think that

          21   from what the Staff says we're legally sufficient on

          22   where we were.

          23             And so I always err on the, on the side of

          24   getting more information into the record rather than

          25   less information into the record, but I do appreciate
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           1   your arguments.

           2             MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Thank you, sir.

           3             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Next witness.

           4             MR. GUYTON:  May Mr. Burroughs be excused?

           5             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is he here for rebuttal?

           6             MR. GUYTON:  He does not have rebuttal.

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  The only concern I have is

           8   there was one or two witnesses that he said can answer

           9   questions that he chose not to answer.  If for some

          10   reason those witnesses cannot answer those questions, we

          11   may have to recall him.

          12             MR. GUYTON:  We will keep him available.

          13             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.  Unless you can

          14   guarantee me those witnesses can answer those questions.

          15             MR. GUYTON:  There's only two things in life

          16   that are guaranteed, and I'm not --

          17             (Laughter.)

          18             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Next witness.

          19             MR. MOYLE:  Mr. Chairman, just a quick

          20   inquiry.  For planning purposes, is it your plan, like

          21   we did yesterday, to break at 1:00 for lunch, or --

          22             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Give or take 15 minutes or

          23   so.

          24             MR. MOYLE:  Okay.  Thanks.

          25             MR. GUYTON:  Gulf calls Mr. Grove.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And before you get started

           2   with Mr. Grove, I believe the witness that Mr. Burroughs

           3   referred to was McMillan, and he is not the next

           4   witness, the one after that.  So after McMillan is done,

           5   if those questions are answered, we can release

           6   Mr. Burroughs.

           7             MR. GUYTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

           8                       RAYMOND W. GROVE

           9   was called as a witness on behalf of Gulf Power Company

          10   and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

          11                         EXAMINATION

          12   BY MR. GUYTON:

          13        Q    Mr. Grove, have you previously been sworn?

          14        A    Yes, sir, I have.

          15        Q    Would you please state your name and position

          16   for the record.

          17        A    Yes.  My name is Raymond W. Grove, and I am

          18   the Manager of Power Generation Services for Gulf Power

          19   company.

          20        Q    Mr. Grove, did you or did Gulf have occasion

          21   to file with the Commission on July 8th, 2011, your

          22   direct testimony, containing 68 typewritten pages?

          23        A    Yes, sir, they did.

          24        Q    And do you have any corrections to that

          25   testimony as filed?
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           1        A    Yes, I do.

           2        Q    Would you present those to the Commission,

           3   please.

           4        A    On page 27, line 6, please change 113,000,223

           5   to 112,015,000.

           6             On page 61, line 15, add the words "allocation

           7   of" before the word "personnel."

           8             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  One more time.  Which line?

           9             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  On page 61, line 15,

          10   add the word "allocation of" before the word

          11   "personnel."

          12             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Got you.

          13             THE WITNESS:  Also on line 61 -- I'm sorry, on

          14   page 61, line 16, please strike the word "new."

          15             And on page 65, line 5, change the word "six"

          16   to "seven."

          17   BY MR. GUYTON:

          18        Q    Mr. Grove, with those changes to your direct

          19   testimony, if I were to ask you the same questions today

          20   as are contained in your direct testimony, would your

          21   answers be the same?

          22        A    Mr. Guyton, I still have some additional

          23   changes.

          24        Q    I'm sorry.

          25        A    Thanks for your help.
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           1             On Schedule 7, page 1, several values in the

           2   schedule are going to change, because Gulf is going to

           3   make some changes to Baseline Other, and you'll see how

           4   that flows through.  It's similar to what Mr. Burroughs

           5   did.

           6             On Baseline Other, please change --

           7             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'm sorry.  What page are

           8   you on, sir?

           9             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  It's Schedule 7.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

          11             THE WITNESS:  Under Baseline Other, please

          12   change the amount for 2015 from 55,973 to 49,933.

          13             Also for 2015, change the total from 99 --

          14   total baseline, I'm sorry -- from 99670 to 93630.

          15             And then change the actual budget, the total

          16   actual budget amount from 120,607 to 114,567.  Change

          17   the average from 113,223 to 112,015.

          18             And lastly, on Schedule 11, in the column

          19   entitled 2011, move the 39,000, or the number 39 from

          20   Scholz Common to Scholz 2.

          21             In the column entitled 2012, move the 39,000

          22   from Scholz Common to Scholz 1.

          23             And finally, in 2013, move the 40,000 from

          24   Scholz Common to Scholz Unit 2.

          25
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           1   BY MR. GUYTON:

           2        Q    Mr. Grove, if I were to ask you the same

           3   questions today as are contained in your prefiled

           4   testimony, would your answers be the same as amended?

           5        A    Yes, sir, they would.

           6        Q    And is the information in your Exhibit RWG-1,

           7   consisting of Schedules 1 through 12, true and correct

           8   to the best of your knowledge and belief?

           9        A    Yes, sir.

          10             (***REPORTER'S NOTE:  For ease of the record,

          11   Witness Grove's prefiled direct testimony was inserted

          12   into the record.)
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           1   BY MR. GUYTON:

           2        Q    Have you prepared a summary of your testimony?

           3        A    Yes, sir, I have.

           4        Q    Would you present that summary to the

           5   Commission, please.

           6        A    Yes, I will.

           7             Good morning, Commissioners.  My name is

           8   Raymond Grove, and I am the Manager of Power Generation

           9   Services for Gulf Power Company.

          10             I want to thank you for this opportunity to

          11   summarize my testimony, because I recognize that

          12   providing you with clarifications to any questions you

          13   may have concerning the production organization is

          14   critical in filling the record in order to help you make

          15   a fully informed decision in this proceeding, as the

          16   production organization represents a significant portion

          17   of the increase Gulf is asking for.

          18             At stake is Gulf's ability to continue to

          19   provide reliable and efficient generating resources to

          20   our customer.

          21             My testimony touches on four subjects:  Gulf's

          22   generation resources, the production capital additions,

          23   the production O&M budget, and the production workforce.

          24             Since our last rate case, Gulf has executed

          25   four purchased power agreements, and each has been
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           1   approved by this Commission.  Each of these purchased

           2   power agreements was designed to ensure our system

           3   reliability and to provide value to our customers, who

           4   ultimately pay for those contracts.

           5             In addition, Gulf constructed the Perdido

           6   landfill gas to energy facility, and in developing that

           7   project Gulf used the Commission's approved 2008

           8   renewable standard offer contract as the basis for all

           9   decisions.

          10             As discussed by Witness McMillan, Gulf has

          11   $2.6 billion of plant-in-service in the 2012 rate base,

          12   and the production assets represent approximately

          13   $1 billion, or over 40% of Gulf's total

          14   plant-in-service.

          15             The production capital additions test year

          16   budget in each year since the last rate case was

          17   developed using a rigorous multilevel review and

          18   approval process.  Every project must pass this rigorous

          19   review before it is ultimately included in Gulf's

          20   approved capital additions budget.

          21             Gulf is keenly aware of the pressures in terms

          22   of revenue requirements that each capital addition

          23   triggers and the potential effect it has on our

          24   customers.

          25             The production organization is the single
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           1   largest O&M budget at Gulf Power Company.  The O&M

           2   request for production in this case is $110 million, and

           3   we have justified this request using three approaches.

           4             First, all the dollars included in the budget

           5   have passed this multilevel review and approval process.

           6   Next, we have provided an outline of the drivers behind

           7   the change from the historical period to the forecast

           8   period.  And lastly, using the Commission's approved

           9   benchmark methodology, we have justified all expenses

          10   and explained all in excess of the benchmark.

          11             Once again, we recognize the pressures that

          12   the increased O&M requirements put on our customers, and

          13   we have taken steps to hold those costs down.  But we

          14   have reached a point where we can no longer sustain

          15   historical spending without affecting reliability and

          16   efficiency of our generating fleet.

          17             Lastly, the production organization is

          18   requesting 394 full-time equivalents spread across

          19   northwest Florida in our three generating plants and the

          20   corporate office.  And although there is a variance

          21   between the 2010 year-end actual FTEs and the 2012

          22   budgeted FTEs, the main driver has been that we've held

          23   filling those jobs in order to avoid, in order to avoid

          24   spending those dollars at a time when our customers were

          25   struggling.
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           1             In conclusion, the dollars included in the

           2   production budget are critical in Gulf's ability to

           3   continue to provide reliable and efficient generating

           4   resources to our customers.  It is our desire to provide

           5   our customers with what they deserve, a reliable and

           6   efficient generating fleet that minimizes cost.

           7             Thank you very much.

           8             MR. GUYTON:  We tender Mr. Grove.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Sayler, how long do you

          10   think you have questions for this witness?

          11             MR. SAYLER:  Potentially, depending upon his

          12   answers, probably ten, 15 minutes, maybe 20.

          13             However, I also had an inquiry regarding

          14   schedule for today, because we still have witnesses

          15   later on.  We're not sure how far we're going to get

          16   through all the witnesses and whether we're going to get

          17   into the Intervenor witnesses, and we still have even

          18   witnesses that are traveling today and some won't even

          19   arrive until this evening.  So I wanted to raise that

          20   question at the appropriate time as well.

          21             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  What is your

          22   question?

          23             MR. SAYLER:  Our question is, do you think --

          24             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think we're going to be

          25   done today.
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           1             MR. SAYLER:  Huh?

           2             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I said, "I think we're going

           3   to be done today."

           4             (Laughter.)

           5             MR. SAYLER:  Well, I guess my question would

           6   be do you think we will at least start into the

           7   Intervenor witnesses and get through all the Intervenor

           8   witnesses or a portion?  Because we have one, one of our

           9   witnesses arriving tonight after 7:00.

          10             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, it's all right if your

          11   witnesses don't appear in order.  I mean, I didn't set

          12   the order, that was the Prehearing Officer.  But if one

          13   is not here, we can move on to the next one.

          14             MR. SAYLER:  Okay.

          15             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I mean, we're not going to

          16   say since they're not here that we're not going to hear

          17   from them.

          18             MR. SAYLER:  Okay.

          19             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  But we'll move on to the

          20   next one, and hopefully they'll be here by the time

          21   you're done answering your -- asking your questions, or

          22   your witnesses.

          23             MR. SAYLER:  Certainly.  I was just inquiring

          24   as well if we were still planning to go to 7:00, or if

          25   we're getting time off for good behavior today.
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           1             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We plan on going to 7:00.

           2   If we get time off for good behavior, it will be on

           3   Friday.

           4             MR. SAYLER:  All right.  Would you like me to

           5   start my cross-examination?

           6             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No.  I think we're close

           7   enough to lunch.

           8             MR. SAYLER:  Okay.

           9             CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's go ahead and break for

          10   lunch, and reconvene at 1:45, if that's possible.

          11             MR. SAYLER:  All right.  Thank you.

          12             (Recess taken.)

          13             (Transcript continues in sequence with Volume

          14   6.)
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